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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

9:07 a.m.: 

EXAMINER STOGNER: At t h i s time I w i l l c a l l Case 

Number 12,370. 

MS. HEBERT: A p p l i c a t i o n of Marbob Energy 

Corporation f o r an unorthodox gas w e l l l o c a t i o n , Eddy 

County, New Mexico. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: C a l l f o r appearances. 

MR. CARR: Paul Owen of the Santa Fe law f i r m of 

Campbell, Carr, Berge and Sheridan, r e p r e s e n t i n g the 

App l i c a n t Marbob Energy Corporation. 

And I have one witness, s i x e x h i b i t s i n t h i s 

case. 

EXAMINER STOGNER:' Any other appearances? Let 

the record show the room i s empty. 

W i l l the witness please remain standing t o be 

sworn in? 

(Thereupon, the witness was sworn.) 

MR. OWEN: May i t please the Examiner, as my 

f i r s t witness I c a l l Mr. Raye M i l l e r . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Do you have others? 

MR. OWEN: That's a l l I have. " F i r s t " i m p l i e s 

others. That's my only witness, Mr. Examiner. 
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RAYE P. MILLER. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. OWEN: 

Q. Mr. M i l l e r , would you please t e l l us your f u l l 

name and s p e l l your f i r s t name? 

A. My f u l l name i s Raye Paul M i l l e r . My f i r s t name 

i s s p e l l e d R-a-y-e. 

Q. Where do you l i v e ? 

A. I resi d e i n A r t e s i a , New Mexico. 

Q. And who do you work for? 

A. I work f o r Marbob Energy Corporation. 

Q. What do you do f o r Marbob? 

A. A mu l t i t u d e of t h i n g s . I wind up being i n the 

land department, gas contracts engineering. We're a small 

company, and we do a l o t of d i f f e r e n t t h i n g s as p a r t of our 

jo b . 

Q. As a matter of f a c t , Mr. M i l l e r , you have 

p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before t h i s D i v i s i o n as a p r a c t i c a l 

oilman and had your c r e d e n t i a l s as a p r a c t i c a l oilman 

recognized and made a matter of record, have you not? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the A p p l i c a t i o n f i l e d on 

behalf of Marbob i n t h i s case? 
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A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the s t a t u s of the lands i n 

the subject area? 

A. Yes, s i r , I am. 

Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the p r o j e c t i n general, 

i n c l u d i n g the geology of the p r o j e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r , I am. 

Q. Why don't you t e l l us what Marbob seeks w i t h t h i s 

A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Do you want him t o accept me before you j u s t get 

s t a r t e d r i g h t o f f ? 

MR. OWEN: Mr. Examiner, are the witness's 

q u a l i f i c a t i o n s as a p r a c t i c a l oilman acceptable? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Mr. Raye Paul M i l l e r ' s 

q u a l i f i c a t i o n s are acceptable. 

Q. (By Mr. Owen) And Mr. M i l l e r , why don't you t e l l 

us what Marbob seeks w i t h the A p p l i c a t i o n i n t h i s case? 

A. We're seeking an order a u t h o r i z i n g Marbob t o 

d r i l l i t s Primero Federal Well Number 2 t o the Morrow 

formation i n the Washington Ranch-Morrow South Gas Pool a t 

an unorthodox l o c a t i o n , t h a t l o c a t i o n being 2116 f e e t from 

the south l i n e and 542 f e e t from the west l i n e , which f a l l s 

i n U n i t L e t t e r L of Section 23, Township 2 6 South, Range 24 

East, of Eddy County, New Mexico. 

Q. And you've prepared a number of e x h i b i t s f o r 
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i n t r o d u c t i o n i n t h i s case? 

A. Yes, s i r , I have. 

Q. Let's t u r n t o E x h i b i t Number 1. Can you please 

e x p l a i n t h a t e x h i b i t f o r the Examiner, please? 

A. E x h i b i t Number 1 i s the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

a p p l i c a t i o n t h a t we i n i t i a l l y submitted i n regards t o t h i s 

unorthodox l o c a t i o n , and we were subsequently advised 

through discussions t h a t i t probably needed t o be set f o r 

hearing because of the changes and the setbacks and the 

co n s i d e r a t i o n t h a t OCD was g i v i n g t o unorthodox gas w e l l 

l o c a t i o n s . 

Q. And Mr. M i l l e r , d i d , i n f a c t — d i d my law f i r m 

f i l e a formal A p p l i c a t i o n f o r hearing i n t h i s case, as w e l l 

as your a d m i n i s t r a t i v e a p p l i c a t i o n , which i s r e f l e c t e d i n 

E x h i b i t Number 1? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Was t h a t A p p l i c a t i o n f i l e d f o l l o w i n g your 

discussions w i t h Mr. Stogner i n which i t appeared t h a t you 

would set t h i s matter f o r hearing? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. What's the primary o b j e c t i v e of t h i s proposed 

w e l l ? 

A. The o b j e c t i v e of the w e l l i s a c t u a l l y the Morrow 

format i o n . And again, there i s a c t u a l l y a producing w e l l 

t o the n o r t h of i t t h a t ' s such t h a t i t would be i n the 
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Washington Ranch-Morrow South Gas Pool. 

Q. And i n t h a t Morrow pool, why i s t h i s unorthodox 

l o c a t i o n necessary? 

A. Well, we're seeking a l o c a t i o n t h a t a c t u a l l y i s 

c l o s e r t o the se c t i o n l i n e than 660 f e e t , which i s the 

r e q u i r e d setbacks by the OCD r u l e s f o r gas w e l l s . 

Q. And you t h e r e f o r e seek an exception t o Rule 

104.C. (2) . (a) — 

A. Yes, we do. 

Q. — of the D i v i s i o n rules? 

A. I t ' s based on — Our request i s based on the f a c t 

of problems a t surface l o c a t i o n s , w i t h the surface manager 

being the Bureau of Land Management f o r the proposed w e l l . 

Q. Did you i n i t i a l l y propose t h i s w e l l a t a standard 

l o c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, s i r , we proposed the w e l l a t a standard 

l o c a t i o n and spent a l o t of time w i t h t h i s w e l l and the 

c u r r e n t producing w e l l i n f i g h t i n g w i t h the BLM over where 

we were going t o wind up a c t u a l l y being able t o d r i l l i t . 

Q. Mr. M i l l e r , are your n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h the BLM as 

t o t h i s w e l l r e f l e c t e d i n Marbob E x h i b i t Number 2? 

A. Yes, I've provided i n E x h i b i t 2 several items 

here. The f i r s t p l a t t h a t appears on top i s a c t u a l l y the 

l o c a t i o n t h a t we i n i t i a l l y requested f o r the BLM. We show 

the p l a t t h e r e and then a t t a c h the — I d i d n ' t send the 30 
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pages or a t t a c h the 3 0 pages t h a t they r e q u i r e i n an 

a p p l i c a t i o n t o d r i l l , but I d i d a t t a c h the a p p l i c a t i o n 

f r o n t page, and then also the topographic map, which shows 

the l o c a t i o n of our standard or our i n i t i a l l y requested 

l o c a t i o n . 

Our f o l k s have had q u i t e a b i t of di s c u s s i o n w i t h 

the BLM i n regards t o the l o c a t i o n we d r i l l e d i n the n o r t h 

h a l f of 23, and so when we f i l e d t h i s l o c a t i o n we t r i e d t o 

place i t a t a l o c a t i o n t h a t we f e l t l i k e the BLM would 

probably f i n d f a i r l y acceptable, given the r e s t r i c t i o n s 

t h a t they have or the s p e c i a l management areas they have i n 

t h i s l o c a t i o n . 

Following t h a t f i r s t topo i s , then, a second 

p l a t . You can see our surveyors have loved t h i s work. 

I t ' s a long way from Hobbs, and they've g o t t e n v a r i o u s 

t r i p s out there t o resurvey. This one was done i n January 

of t h i s year, the other one was done i n January of l a s t 

year. 

We thought we had an agreement w i t h the BLM t h a t 

t h i s l o c a t i o n would be acceptable. And as you can see, 

i t ' s 2100 f e e t from the south l i n e and 700 f e e t from the 

west l i n e . We were t o l d by the cave/karst s p e c i a l i s t t h a t 

he f e l t t h a t t h i s l o c a t i o n would be f i n e , and so we 

surveyed i t i n and f i l e d i t . 

Y o u ' l l n o t i c e I've also included a topo t h a t 
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gives you the l o c a t i o n where i t ' s located and the access 

road t h a t we proposed i n t o i t . And then a f t e r t h a t top 

y o u ' l l f i n d the a c t u a l l o c a t i o n t h a t i s the one we're now 

seeking. 

Q. Mr. M i l l e r , why was t h a t second l o c a t i o n 

r e j e c t e d ? 

A. The second l o c a t i o n was r e j e c t e d because of 

v i s u a l concerns. I f you n o t i c e , our access road — Well, I 

guess I should describe a l i t t l e more about the topo. 

The dark black l i n e t h a t runs k i n d of from the 

northeast t o the southwest there through Section 14 and on 

down i n t o Section 2 7 i s a c t u a l l y the paved highway running 

between Carlsbad and El Paso, or running on i n t o Texas 

towards El Paso. This i s below Whites C i t y . 

The BLM has a s p e c i a l management on t h i s area f o r 

various d i f f e r e n t concerns, but one of them i s a v i s u a l 

concern. And the v i s u a l t h i n g of beauty t h a t they see f o r 

people on the highway i s the Guadalupe Escarpment, the 

mountain range on the west. Now, t h a t — I mean, i t i s 

p r e t t y . I've d r i v e n t h a t road a l o t of times going t o El 

Paso and I've seen i t . 

The problem I have i s t h a t our l o c a t i o n i s not 

a c t u a l l y on the side of the road w i t h the mountains. But 

t h a t doesn't seem t o matter t o the BLM. And i n f a c t , they 

were very concerned t h a t , you know, t h i s l o c a t i o n t h a t was 
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set here on a subsequent f i e l d t r i p , meaning they decided 

t h a t t h a t access road would be too v i s i b l e by people coming 

back from El Paso because of the f a c t t h a t i t would extend 

across the top of t h a t r i d g e . 

And a c t u a l l y , where we're located t h e r e , t h i s 

l o c a t i o n and the other l o c a t i o n , t h a t ' s k i n d of a f l a t p a r t 

of a r i d g e . And then i t slopes o f f on both sides i n t o 

v a l l e y s i n t h e r e . 

They decided t h a t t h a t was too v i s i b l e a 

l o c a t i o n , and t h a t ' s why they requested t h a t we move i t 

even s l i g h t l y f u r t h e r . 

And the t h i r d p l a t — and then i t also has a topo 

— and you can see t h a t we're s l i g h t l y down from the top of 

the r i d g e t here and t h a t our access road has now been 

changed t o where i t a c t u a l l y accesses from a p o i n t o f f the 

top of the r i d g e w i t h a l i t t l e more slope on i t . 

The other areas of concern t h a t the BLM has i n 

t h i s v i c i n i t y i s , they have cave/karst concerns. I mean, 

none of us want t o d r i l l i n t o Carlsbad Caverns or 

Le c h u g u i l l a Cave, but a c t u a l l y i n t h i s area we don't have 

the type of formations t h a t would a c t u a l l y have generated 

those type of caves. What we a c t u a l l y have i n t h i s 

v i c i n i t y i s , we have some gypsum/karst-type of f e a t u r e s 

t h a t are prevalent i n many areas around the southeastern 

p a r t of New Mexico. 
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I n our discussions w i t h the BLM over the o r i g i n a l 

f i r s t l o c a t i o n i n the no r t h h a l f of 23, we made several 

moves based on k a r s t concerns of the BLM. And t h a t winds 

up having set some r e a l l y d i f f i c u l t n e g o t i a t i o n s , because 

we went through a lengthy process of f i g h t i n g them over 

those l o c a t i o n s and f i n a l l y resolved i t a t an unorthodox 

l o c a t i o n t o j u s t t r y t o get a w e l l d r i l l e d , t o see i f we 

were successful. And indeed, we were successful on t h a t 

f i r s t w e l l . But the f i g h t t h a t we put up the r e seems t o 

have i n f l u e n c e d t h e i r w i l l i n g t o work w i t h us on many of 

these other l o c a t i o n s . 

Q. Now, t h i s t h i r d l o c a t i o n i s r e f l e c t e d on the 

t h i r d p l a t and t h i r d topo map contained i n Marbob E x h i b i t 

Number 2. I s t h a t the l o c a t i o n t h a t was proposed i n 

Marbob's o r i g i n a l a d m i n i s t r a t i v e a p p l i c a t i o n t o the O i l 

Conservation Divi s i o n ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And Mr. Stogner i n d i c a t e d t h a t he would not 

approve t h a t l o c a t i o n a d m i n i s t r a t i v e l y ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Right, i t would need t o be set f o r hearing. 

Q. Did you discuss the f a c t t h a t the O i l 

Conservation D i v i s i o n had res e r v a t i o n s about t h i s l o c a t i o n 

w i t h the BLM subsequent t o Mr. Stogner 1s i n d i c a t i o n t h a t he 

would not approve i t a d m i n i s t r a t i v e l y ? 

A. Yes, we d i d , and the BLM a c t u a l l y has provided a 
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l e t t e r , which i s included behind t h a t l a s t topo, which was 

sent t o the OCD requesting — or showing t h e i r support f o r 

t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n a t the unorthodox l o c a t i o n and i d e n t i f y i n g 

the various d i f f e r e n t concerns t h a t they have i n t h i s area. 

I also f a i l e d t o discuss the s e n s i t i v e s o i l 

issue. I t winds up being a t h i n g where our f i r s t l o c a t i o n 

t o the n o r t h f e l l on a f a i r l y s i g n i f i c a n t slope, and t h a t 

was immediately r u l e d out. We'd e i t h e r have t o go u p h i l l 

or d o w n h i l l , t h a t they wouldn't allow us t o d r i l l . And I 

mean, t h i s s e n s i t i v e s o i l — Well, obviously I'm not a good 

s o i l s person, because i t looks l i k e a l o t of s e n s i t i v e s o i l 

i n t h i s p a r t of the world. I'm not sure how we don't have 

most of Texas being s e n s i t i v e s o i l s , or a good p o r t i o n of 

west Texas. But anyway... 

And also, i n one of the l o c a t i o n s or one of the 

access roads of e i t h e r the o r i g i n a l or the second, where 

the access road a c t u a l l y was proposed t o come o f f the 

highway, there was a small arch s i t e , and so by the f a c t 

t h a t we moved the access road f u r t h e r n o r t h , we avoided 

t h a t arch s i t e . We d i d not m i t i g a t e i t , but i t was a very, 

very minor arch s i t e , and the archaeologist had i n d i c a t e d 

t h a t they might be w i l l i n g t o waive i t , as long as we made 

sure t h a t our road was confined t o the l o c a t i o n t h a t we 

were a c t u a l l y proposing. 

Q. So you i n i t i a l l y proposed a w e l l a t the standard 
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l o c a t i o n , and t h a t l o c a t i o n was r e j e c t e d by the BLM; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . I f y o u ' l l n o t i c e , there's a 

l a r g e time frame variance between our f i r s t a p p l i c a t i o n , or 

the s t a k i n g done i n January of 1999, and the second one 

done i n January of 2000. The BLM was very unhappy w i t h us 

i n the n o r t h h a l f of 23, and when we proposed t h i s w e l l i n 

the south h a l f of 23, they t o l d us there was no way we were 

going t o get a l o c a t i o n down there. 

I n the i n t e r i m time, we d r i l l e d s e v eral w e l l s i n 

t h i s f a c i l i t y , which I ' l l t a l k about l a t e r on i n a 

d i f f e r e n t e x h i b i t , and we were unsuccessful a t those 

l o c a t i o n s . And since the Number 1 was s uccessful, we 

wanted t o t r y f o r a w e l l i n the south h a l f of 23. And as a 

r e s u l t , we've been — n e g o t i a t i n g , I guess, i s the proper 

word — ever since, t o t r y t o get a l o c a t i o n w i t h the BLM. 

Q. Now, have you a c t u a l l y had o n - s i t e v i s i t s w i t h 

the BLM t o t r y t o f i n d a w e l l a t a standard l o c a t i o n ? 

A. We've had — Well, Mr. Chumbley, who works i n our 

o f f i c e , has been t o t h i s l o c a t i o n numerous times and had 

p h y s i c a l , o n - s i t e v i s i t s w i t h Mr. Jim Goodbar, who i s the 

cave/karst s p e c i a l i s t f o r the BLM. And t h a t ' s how we came 

t o t h i s f i n a l spot, was by t h e i r p i c k i n g i t w h i l e they were 

the r e i n the f i e l d . 

Q. Based on your discussions and on other employees 
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of Marbob's discussions w i t h the BLM, i s i t your o p i n i o n 

t h a t t h e r e i s no p o s s i b i l i t y of l o c a t i n g a w e l l a t a 

standard l o c a t i o n ? 

A. Surface l o c a t i o n , I don't b e l i e v e the BLM would 

gr a n t us a l o c a t i o n i n the south h a l f of 2 3 a t a standard 

l o c a t i o n , a t l e a s t not i n the southwest q u a r t e r . 

Q. I n your opinion, have you exhausted a l l 

n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h the BLM f o r a standard surface l o c a t i o n 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Do you have any secondary o b j e c t i v e s i n t h i s 

w e l l ? 

A. No, there are none. The Number 1 w e l l t h a t was 

d r i l l e d i n the no r t h h a l f of 23 was mudlogged through a l l 

of the Delaware and a l l the horizons. We also have d r i l l e d 

t h r e e a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s t o the northwest, t o the n o r t h and 

the northeast, and those were a l l mudlogged and looked f o r 

secondary t a r g e t s , and there was no i n d i c a t i o n of 

production outside of p o t e n t i a l l y i n the Morrow horizon. 

Q. So you're not seeking approval of an unorthodox 

l o c a t i o n f o r a p r o r a t i o n u n i t based on 40-acre or 80-acre 

spacing? 

A. No, s i r , we're not. 

Q. How i s Marbob planning t o d r i l l and produce the 

wel l ? 

A. Our proposal f o r d r i l l i n g i s b a s i c a l l y a f a i r l y 
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simple proposal t h a t has been approved by the BLM. We'll 

set 8-5/8 casing at about 950 t o 1000 f e e t . We'll d r i l l a 

7-7/8 hole t o TD, which should be about 8000 f e e t . We 

would e i t h e r then — Well, w e ' l l l o g and then e i t h e r run 

pipe or plug the w e l l i f there's no sands present or not 

commercial sands present. 

I f i t ' s successful, w e ' l l set a stack pack and 

l o w - p r o f i l e green tanks. We won't use the sandstone brown, 

w e ' l l a c t u a l l y use nice green tanks, but t h e y ' l l be sho r t 

tanks. And then w e ' l l complete the w e l l and w e ' l l l a y a 

gas l i n e t o the n o r t h t o t i e i n t o the Number 1, which i s 

c u r r e n t l y t i e d i n t o El Paso F i e l d Service. 

Q. And i s t h a t Number 1 w e l l r e f l e c t e d on Marbob 

E x h i b i t Number 3 i n the n o r t h h a l f of 2 3 there? 

A. Yes, i f you'd l i k e t o look a t E x h i b i t Number 3, 

i t a c t u a l l y shows the p r o r a t i o n u n i t or the l o c a t i o n of our 

w e l l t h e r e , proposed w e l l , i s i n the pink. The Number 1 

w e l l i s shown there t o the n o r t h , i n the n o r t h h a l f of 

Section 23. 

This map a c t u a l l y i d e n t i f i e s o f f s e t p r o r a t i o n 

u n i t s . I t ' s a c t u a l l y a Midland Map Company map t h a t I've 

p l a g i a r i z e d here, and i t winds up i d e n t i f y i n g t h a t the 

f e d e r a l lease, i f you look there i n the east h a l f of 22, i s 

Federal Lease 100316, which i s the same f e d e r a l lease t h a t 

covers a l l of Section 23 and covers a l l of Section 24. 
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There i s a d i f f e r e n t f e d e r a l lease number, 

100317, which covers the east h a l f of 27, a l l of 2 6 and a l l 

of 25. The r o y a l t i e s on those f e d e r a l leases are 

i d e n t i c a l . 

We wind up — The only productive w e l l a t t h i s 

p o i n t i n the f i e l d i s the Number 1 w e l l t h e r e i n the n o r t h 

h a l f . The ownership of both of those f e d e r a l leases i s 

i d e n t i c a l . 

Primero Operating brought t h i s deal t o us several 

years ago. They had acquired the f e d e r a l leases. We now 

own them j o i n t l y w i t h them, and the ownership o v e r r i d e s 

r o y a l t i e s , and working i n t e r e s t i s a l l common through a l l 

of the t r a c t s there. 

Q. Now, I n o t i c e t h a t there are a couple of Marbob 

w e l l s located i n Section 2 6 there, one i n the east h a l f , 

one i n the west h a l f . Are those w e l l s a c t u a l l y d r i l l e d ? 

A. No, the w e l l s i n Section 2 6 are proposed 

l o c a t i o n s which we f i l e d w i t h the BLM, and these are a t 

orthodox l o c a t i o n s . 

I'm concerned as t o how the BLM w i l l approach us 

on these l o c a t i o n s . I t h i n k a t t h i s p o i n t , even i f the 

Commission approves t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n , t h a t we probably 

should have a l e t t e r , p o s s i b l y from the Commission, t h a t 

i n d i c a t e s t o the BLM t h a t they need t o avoid unorthodox gas 

w e l l l o c a t i o n s and t r y t o f i n d somewhere i n s i d e the 
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orthodox area t o allow companies t o d r i l l , p a r t i c u l a r l y 

given the f a c t t h a t , you know, gas w e l l s , probably even 

w i t h the i n f i l l w e l l s , you wouldn't have more than f o u r i n 

a s e c t i o n , and sur e l y there should be t h a t many s u i t a b l e 

l o c a t i o n s , and orthodox, t h a t they would allow us t o 

consider d r i l l i n g . 

So we do need some support from you a l l t o 

a c t u a l l y t r y t o avoid going through t h i s again i n Section 

26. 

Q. Now, Mr. M i l l e r , you're not saying t h a t you're 

planning t o come i n here and ask f o r an unorthodox approval 

of an unorthodox l o c a t i o n f o r those two w e l l s i n 26, are 

you? 

A. No, s i r , we're not. I n f a c t , we're going t o go 

t o the BLM and t e l l them t h a t b a s i c a l l y the Commission 

doesn't want t o see us back, and t h a t they need t o work 

w i t h us and f i n d a l o c a t i o n i n an orthodox spot. 

Q. Okay. Now, as t o the Primero w e l l t h a t ' s the 

subject of t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n , have you gotten a l l working 

i n t e r e s t s v o l u n t a r i l y committed t o the well? 

A. Yes, a l l of the i n t e r e s t s are agreeable t o t h a t 

l o c a t i o n . 

Q. And the ownership of i n t e r e s t s i n the east h a l f 

of Section 22 there and the n o r t h h a l f of 2 3 appear t o be 

a f f e c t e d by the encroachment of t h i s proposed w e l l 
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l o c a t i o n . Have you contacted the i n t e r e s t owners i n those 

p r o r a t i o n u n i t s ? 

A. Yes, s i r . The i n t e r e s t owners, outsi d e of Marbob 

Energy, are David Sorenson, Slash Four, Branex and P i t c h 

Energy. P i t c h i s one of our companies. Sorenson, Slash 

Four and Branex operate under Primero Operating. 

We have n o t i f i e d them of t h i s hearing, and i f you 

look a t E x h i b i t 4, each one has signed a waiver f o r the 

unorthodox l o c a t i o n based on the n o t i c e of the hearing 

today, A p r i l 6th, and the unorthodox l o c a t i o n t h a t we were 

seeking. And those are contained as E x h i b i t 4. 

Q. And again, Mr. M i l l e r , f o l l o w i n g your i n i t i a l 

discussions w i t h Mr. Stogner regarding the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

a p p l i c a t i o n , you had my law f i r m f i l e a formal A p p l i c a t i o n 

f o r hearing; i s t h a t correct? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And t h a t hearing was — That A p p l i c a t i o n 

requested a hearing f o r A p r i l 2 0th, 2 000; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I n f a c t t h i s case, of course, i s being heard on 

A p r i l 6th. Your l e t t e r s t h a t are r e f l e c t e d i n Marbob 

E x h i b i t Number 4, i n f a c t , n o t i f i e d them t h a t the hearing 

w i l l be A p r i l 6th; i s t h a t correct? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And i n f a c t , have a l l i n t e r e s t owners a f f e c t e d by 
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t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n waived o b j e c t i o n t o t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n and 

the r e l i e f sought by t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, s i r , they have. 

Q. Okay. Now, you've also brought a couple of 

t e c h n i c a l e x h i b i t s t o review w i t h the Examiner. Can you 

take a look a t Marbob E x h i b i t Number 5 and e x p l a i n i t t o 

the Examiner, please? 

A. E x h i b i t Number 5 i s a s t r u c t u r e map on the Morrow 

form a t i o n down i n t h i s area. The l o g contained on the 

l e f t - h a n d side of the e x h i b i t i s a c t u a l l y the l o g from the 

discovery w e l l , the Primero Federal Number 1. 

Our s t r u c t u r e map t h a t i s there t o the r i g h t i s 

based on t h a t limestone marker shown there i n blue a t about 

7660 i n t h a t p a r t i c u l a r w e l l . And the a c t u a l pay zone 

th e r e i s a 10-foot i n t e r v a l j u s t shown underneath the brown 

l i n e t h e r e on the l e f t i n the i n i t i a l w e l l . 

There i s one e r r o r on my f i n e l y produced e x h i b i t 

here. You can t e l l I d i d n ' t draw t h i s one by hand l i k e 

some of my others there. I t i d e n t i f i e s t h a t the cum of the 

Primero Federal Number 1 i s .106 BCF. The a c t u a l cum 

c u r r e n t l y i s .249 BCF. The w e l l i s producing a t about 1.3, 

1.4 m i l l i o n a day, and the r e s e r v o i r appears t o be such 

t h a t w e ' l l a c t u a l l y cum somewhere i n the neighborhood of 2, 

2.5 BCF from t h a t 10-foot sand. 

To the r i g h t i s , then, the s t r u c t u r e map, based 
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on t h a t limestone marker. And as you can see, we're 

d i p p i n g t o the south southeast there i n s t r u c t u r e . 

I love these g e o l o g i s t s , as they draw these nice 

sand patches f o r these Morrow channel sands. I f you look, 

the w e l l i n the n o r t h h a l f of 2 3 there d i d have 10 f o o t of 

sand. I f you look i n 15, i n the northwest q u a r t e r , the 

Mayes Com Number 1 was a w e l l t h a t was a c t u a l l y a shallow 

w e l l t h a t we re-entered and deepened t o the Morrow. I t has 

e i g h t f o o t of sand, but the sand was unproductive, i t was 

t i g h t . 

We then moved from t h a t w e l l i n the northwest of 

15 t o the l o c a t i o n i n the northeast of 15 c a l l e d the 

Washington Primero Number 1. We d r i l l e d t h a t w e l l as a 

n o r t h h a l f also. Both of those w e l l s were d r i l l e d as a 

n o r t h h a l f p r o r a t i o n u n i t , w i t h 50 percent of i t being 

f e d e r a l minerals, the other 50 percent being fee minerals. 

We d r i l l e d t h a t w e l l . 

As the nice g e o l o g i s t has shown, th e r e was 16 

f e e t of sand th e r e . The only problem i s , t h a t sand was 

t i g h t , t h e r e was no way t h a t i t could be p r o d u c t i v e . 

We then came down and decided t h a t we were too 

f a r west, so we moved i n t o Section 14, and we d r i l l e d the 

Primero White Number 14 i n the southwest q u a r t e r , a t the 

l o c a t i o n t h e r e t h a t shows as Number 1, and encountered only 

two f o o t of sand. And so the geology wisdom was t h a t 
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obviously we'd missed the channel t h a t i t l a y between, the 

Primero White 14 Number 1 and the Washington Primero Number 

1, and so a l l we needed t o do was j u s t k i c k i t t o the west, 

and we would h i t t h a t channel and have the mother lode. 

We d i d a c t u a l l y apply and d i r e c t i o n a l l y d r i l l the 

Primero White 14 Number 1 t o an unorthodox bottomhole 

l o c a t i o n a f t e r we had d r i l l e d i t t o the orthodox bottomhole 

l o c a t i o n , and i t ' s shown there as the Number 2, and i t had 

zero f o o t of sand i n the pay se c t i o n . 

And so whereas our nice channel used t o take i n 

those l o c a t i o n s , we now have a nice curve around those 

l o c a t i o n s because i t ' s obvious there's no sand t h e r e . 

There i s very l i t t l e w e l l c o n t r o l i n t h i s area. 

1 mean, t h i s i s a guess. Our f o l k s were l o o k i n g f o r a 

l o c a t i o n somewhere i n the southwest quarter of 2 3 t o t r y t o 

see i f t h e r e was more of a r e s e r v o i r t h e r e than what we 

have. 

The l o c a t i o n t h a t we've app l i e d f o r here as t h i s 

Primero Federal Number 2 i s a c t u a l l y about 2334 f e e t away 

from t h a t Primero Federal Number 1, which i s the producing 

w e l l . 

The l o c a t i o n i n Section 22, t h a t Primero Grooms 

2 2 Federal, i s a t an orthodox l o c a t i o n . That has been 

approved and permitted by the BLM. I t i s , though, s t i l l 

2315 f e e t away from t h i s unorthodox l o c a t i o n . So i f we 
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were successful here and moved over t o the Primero Grooms 

and d r i l l e d i t , we would have considerable distance between 

our w e l l s t o t r y t o capture more r e s e r v o i r i f the r e s e r v o i r 

i s a c t u a l l y present. 

Q. Now, t h a t Primero Federal Number 1 i n the n o r t h 

h a l f of 23, was t h a t the o r i g i n a l l o c a t i o n proposed by 

Marbob? 

A. No, the o r i g i n a l l o c a t i o n , i f our map i s r i g h t , 

would probably now not be i n the channel. And we fought 

over cave/karst l o c a t i o n s . Our o r i g i n a l l o c a t i o n , I 

b e l i e v e , was i n the southeast of the northwest. And we 

fought and we fought and we fought, and f i n a l l y through 

agreement w i t h the BLM we came t o an agreement on t h i s 

l o c a t i o n i n the northwest northwest. 

Now, our g e o l o g i s t picked a l l those f i n e 

l o c a t i o n s i n 15 and 14, the BLM forced us t o the one i n 23. 

So a c t u a l l y I have a l i t t l e b e t t e r hope of t h i s second 

l o c a t i o n since i t ' s now a BLM-forced l o c a t i o n r a t h e r than 

one our g e o l o g i s t i n i t i a l l y picked, but w e ' l l f i n d out 

someday. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now — 

A. Oh, I should also p o i n t out on t h a t s t r u c t u r e 

map, there shows — and i t i d e n t i f i e s w i t h a couple of 

question marks up t h e r e , there may a c t u a l l y be a f a u l t t h a t 

runs through the n o r t h p a r t of 14 and 15 i n t h e r e , w i t h the 
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downthrown side being on the n o r t h end of i t , the upthrown 

side being on the south end, of about 100 f e e t . There was 

a s h i f t , you know, between those w e l l s . We d i d n ' t a c t u a l l y 

encounter any strange d r i l l i n g , but the change i n depth 

subsurface makes the g e o l o g i s t b e l i e v e t h a t there's a 

p o s s i b i l i t y t h a t there may be some type of f a u l t s t r u c t u r e 

up t h e r e t h a t a c t u a l l y has changed. 

Now, I should also probably mention t h a t t o the 

n o r t h of t h i s i s the El Paso Washington Ranch Gas Storage 

U n i t . So the Washington Ranch f i e l d , o l d f i e l d t h a t was 

discovered and i t ' s now gas storage, i s t o the n o r t h . And 

t h i s l o c a t i o n , or these w e l l s i n 15, were as close as w e l l s 

could be d r i l l e d t o t h a t gas storage. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, Marbob E x h i b i t Number 6 i s a 

couple of AFEs f o r t h i s proposed w e l l ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, they are. The f i r s t e x h i b i t i n d i c a t e s i t ' s 

an AFE of August, 1999, which i t i s , except i t has a minor 

m o d i f i c a t i o n . The footage r a t e t h a t was i n our o r i g i n a l 

August of 1999 a p p l i c a t i o n was below the r a t e t h a t ' s 

a c t u a l l y shown here, but t h i s r a t e a c t u a l l y r e f l e c t s the 

cost of d r i l l i n g a footage w e l l i n t h i s area a t t h i s time. 

The second AFE i s a c t u a l l y our estimate of what 

i t would take i f we were re q u i r e d t o d i r e c t i o n a l l y d r i l l 

t h i s l o c a t i o n t o a standard bottomhole l o c a t i o n w i t h the 

unorthodox surface l o c a t i o n . 
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The d i f f e r e n c e i n the AFEs i s about $100,000. 

That i s probably a l i t t l e b i t high t o what our a c t u a l cost 

would be, and p r i m a r i l y because we tend t o have not had 

r e a l good r e s u l t s on day work versus footage. Some way, 

the d r i l l b i t s don't seem t o d r i l l q u i t e as f a s t f o r us 

when the d r i l l i n g c o n t r a c t o r has no i n c e n t i v e , and as a 

r e s u l t — You know, i f everything went p e r f e c t , the cost 

could be somewhere i n the neighborhood of about $60,000 t o 

$65,000. 

We r e a l l y f i g u r e by the time the a d d i t i o n a l cost 

and the a d d i t i o n a l mud l o g days and s t u f f on, we r e a l l y 

f e l t l i k e the $100,000 was probably a more accurate cost as 

t o what i t would take i f we a c t u a l l y were r e q u i r e d t o 

d i r e c t i o n a l l y d r i l l the bottomhole l o c a t i o n t o a standard 

l o c a t i o n . 

Q. Now, the f i r s t AFE, the f i g u r e s i n the f i r s t AFE 

contained i n Marbob E x h i b i t Number 6 are based on your 

a c t u a l costs i n c u r r e d i n d r i l l i n g the w e l l s i n 14, 15 — 

A. — and the n o r t h h a l f of 23. 

Q. — and the n o r t h h a l f of 23; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, except w i t h the adjustment of the d r i l l i n g 

r a t e there t o the AFE. This was not the o r i g i n a l d r i l l i n g 

r a t e t h a t was quoted under the AFE. I t was a c t u a l l y , I 

b e l i e v e , a 14.50-per-foot r a t e . The r a t e s have gone up by 

the d r i l l i n g c o n t r a c t o r . 
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Q. And the r a t e s r e f l e c t e d on the second AFE where 

you have a higher r a t e due t o the d i r e c t i o n a l estimate, i s 

based on your a c t u a l experience i n d r i l l i n g the d i r e c t i o n a l 

k i c k o f f i n the Primero White Number 2 i n Section 14; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I t ' s based on t h a t experience, and also we d i d 

check w i t h the d i r e c t i o n a l f o l k s t o see, because the 

Primero White was a l i t t l e d i f f e r e n t animal i n the f a c t 

t h a t we had already d r i l l e d the s t r a i g h t hole. We had t o 

had t o set a plug and k i c k o f f , whereas under t h i s 

A p p l i c a t i o n , i f we were o b l i g a t e d t o d i r e c t i o n a l l y d r i l l , 

we could j u s t plan on our k i c k o f f p o i n t and go i n the hole 

w i t h a motor on a b i t t r i p and then k i c k t o a standard 

l o c a t i o n . So i t wouldn't be q u i t e as expensive as what we 

had. 

And also the footage we'd be v a r y i n g i s accounted 

f o r i n t h i s AFE. 

Q. Okay. Now, one quick question back on your 

s t r u c t u r e map. 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Your unorthodox l o c a t i o n t h a t you're proposing i s 

not — doesn't appear t o be any g e o l o g i c a l l y i n f e r i o r 

p o s i t i o n t o the standard l o c a t i o n ; i s t h a t a f a i r 

statement? 

A. With the lack of w e l l c o n t r o l i n t h i s area, we 
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b e l i e v e t h a t i t ' s got j u s t as good a chance as the two 

l o c a t i o n s t h a t we had applied f o r p r e v i o u s l y . 

Q. Okay. 

A. Those l i t t l e magic patches of sand t h a t he puts 

down t h e r e , I don't t h i n k he could see. 

Q. Okay. Now, i f you don't d r i l l a w e l l here i n the 

south h a l f of 23, i s i t your opinion t h a t reserves w i l l be 

l e f t i n the ground which might otherwise be recovered? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And i n your opinion, w i l l the g r a n t i n g of t h i s 

A p p l i c a t i o n and the d r i l l i n g of the proposed w e l l be i n the 

best i n t e r e s t s of conservation, the p r e v e n t i o n of waste and 

the p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Mr. M i l l e r , were E x h i b i t s 1 through 6 prepared by 

you or compiled under your d i r e c t i o n and supervision? 

A. Yes, they were. 

MR. OWEN: Mr. Examiner, I move the admission of 

Marbob E x h i b i t s 1 through 6. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: E x h i b i t s 1 through 6 w i l l be 

admitted i n t o evidence. 

MR. OWEN: That's a l l I have of t h i s witness a t 

t h i s time, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: And f o r the record, the l a s t 

page on E x h i b i t Number 2, the l e t t e r from the BLM Carlsbad 
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O f f i c e t o me, I have not received t h a t . This i s the f i r s t 

time I've seen t h i s l e t t e r , so I ' l l make t h a t a p a r t of the 

record. And t h a t was dated March 24th. 

THE WITNESS: Yeah, they faxed us a copy of i t . 

I j u s t assumed t h a t i t had been sent t o you. Sorry about 

t h a t . 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER STOGNER: 

Q. Mr. M i l l e r , were you out there on any of the s i t e 

— what do you c a l l them, s i t e surveys? 

A. Not on the south h a l f of 23. I made several 

t r i p s down there on the no r t h h a l f of 23, and i n f a c t took 

a camera, made photographs and had a meeting w i t h , a t t h a t 

time, Gary Bowers, h i s cave s p e c i a l i s t , and one of the 

other f o l k s . And we argued a t length and spent several 

months f i g h t i n g over the f a c t of t h e i r not wanting us t o 

d r i l l a t p a r t i c u l a r l o c a t i o n s i n the n o r t h h a l f of 23. 

I've d r i v e n by the south h a l f , but I a c t u a l l y 

wasn't on s i t e when Mr. Chumbley and Mr. Goodbar have had 

t h e i r various arguments or discussions. 

Q. But you're f a m i l i a r w i t h what goes on, general 

o n - s i t e BLM meeting w i t h the operator? 

A. Oh, yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. How many BLM rep r e s e n t a t i v e s are u s u a l l y 

a t one of these t h i n g s i n t h i s area? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

29 

A. There have been a whole host of v a r i a t i o n s i n the 

way the BLM has handled t h i s . I n our f i r s t deal t h e r e i n 

the n o r t h h a l f of 23, the BLM a c t u a l l y had one person on 

s i t e w i t h us when we were reviewing those p o s s i b l e 

l o c a t i o n s . And i n f a c t , we had myself, the g e o l o g i s t and 

Mr. Chumbley, a l l three of us, out there when were, a t 

d i f f e r e n t times, going over the n o r t h h a l f of 23. 

A f t e r the problems t h a t we had w i t h t h a t 

l o c a t i o n , and i n the f a c t t h a t we were going t o t r y t o 

d r i l l several other l o c a t i o n s , we ap p l i e d f o r the w e l l i n 

the south h a l f of 23, the w e l l i n 22, the w e l l i n 14 and 

the w e l l i n 15 t o the BLM. 

We went down, had a meeting w i t h them and 

described the various l o c a t i o n s t h a t we were wanting t o t r y 

t o have approved, and they wound up — they took a team of 

s i x people, I b e l i e v e , and went and v i s i t e d each one of 

those l o c a t i o n s . They moved our l o c a t i o n i n the northeast 

of 15. 

Now, I don't know i f the topo maps show i t , but 

the l o c a t i o n i n the northeast of 15 i s a c t u a l l y down 

underneath a considerable h i l l t o where, when you drove by, 

even when t h a t w e l l was being d r i l l e d , you could not see 

the pad and could only see about the top t h i r d of the mast 

from the highway, because of the slope and change of 

t e r r a i n . 
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The l o c a t i o n i n the northwest of 15, of course, 

f e l l on fee, p r i v a t e land, and so the BLM couldn't move us 

th e r e . 

The l o c a t i o n i n 14, we moved a couple of 

d i f f e r e n t ways f o r them. I t winds up, i t f e l l r i g h t beside 

the road, and f i n a l l y the cave/karst and s e n s i t i v e - s o i l s 

people overrode the v i s u a l guy and had him al l o w us t o 

d r i l l r i g h t next t o the highway i n 14. But i t ' s been a 

t h i n g where we've fought — Every l o c a t i o n down th e r e has 

been l i k e p u l l i n g t e e t h . 

Now, you also — and I d i d n ' t address i t e a r l i e r 

— you n o t i c e there's a l o c a t i o n shown i n the southeast of 

15 c a l l e d the Primero Yates 15 Fee Fed Com. Yates staked a 

l o c a t i o n , and we staked a l o c a t i o n i n t h a t v i c i n i t y . 

That's a c t u a l l y the l o c a t i o n t h a t we staked. Yates staked 

one t h a t was b a s i c a l l y j u s t s l i g h t l y , I b e l i e v e , south and 

maybe a h a i r east of t h a t , which would have been b a s i c a l l y 

the same o f f s e t unorthodox as we d i d i n the Primero Federal 

Number 1. 

The BLM t o l d Yates t h a t there was s l i m t o no 

chance t h a t they would get t h a t l o c a t i o n approved. Yates 

fought w i t h them f o r a pe r i o d of time, and a t t h i s p o i n t I 

don't b e l i e v e t h a t l o c a t i o n was ever approved, or any 

l o c a t i o n was ever approved f o r the southeast of 15. A f t e r 

our lack of success i n the north h a l f of 15, I don't 
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b e l i e v e those a p p l i c a t i o n s are being pursued a t t h i s p o i n t . 

Q. Okay. 

A. Part of the problem we have i s the f a c t t h a t the 

Carlsbad o f f i c e of the BLM — and I guess t h i s i s more 

judgmental on my p a r t , but I honestly b e l i e v e t h a t some of 

t h e i r s p e c i a l i s t s have run a l i t t l e b i t amok. I mean, 

southeast New Mexico i s an area of considerable e x t r a c t i v e 

i n d u s t r y development, and some of these issues of pa i n t e d 

d i r t , cave k a r s t when i t ' s j u s t gypsum k a r s t and s t u f f , 

seem t o have taken precedence over s a n i t y . 

I n f a c t , the f i r s t l o c a t i o n , when we d r i l l e d i t , 

we wound up moving United D r i l l i n g Company i n and had them 

a i r - d r i l l the surface, because we knew the problem t h a t we 

had had w i t h t h a t cave/karst person, t h a t i f we a c t u a l l y 

encountered some k i n d of k a r s t and had l o s t c i r c u l a t i o n i n 

t h e r e , t h a t we were going t o pay havoc. 

And so we a c t u a l l y d r i l l e d the surface hole w i t h 

an a i r r i g , set casing, moved t h a t r i g o f f and then brought 

another r i g on. We encountered no k a r s t , no l o s t 

c i r c u l a t i o n when we were d r i l l i n g w i t h a i r , and as a 

r e s u l t , on t h i s l o c a t i o n we are proposing j u s t t o d r i l l i t 

w i t h r o t a r y , and t h a t ' s been a c t u a l l y approved by the BLM. 

They also wouldn't approve our l o c a t i o n s i z e . I 

mean, each l o c a t i o n t h a t we've done down t h e r e , they've not 

allowed us t o have a standard l o c a t i o n w i t h standard p i t s . 
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We've r e s t r i c t e d our l o c a t i o n s i z e t o a minimum s i z e f o r 

each l o c a t i o n t h a t we could p o s s i b l y work i n , and we've 

a c t u a l l y a l t e r e d our d r i l l i n g p i t s t o where the p i t s are 

j u s t long, narrow trenches t h a t reduce the amount of area 

t h a t we're impacting. But, you know — I mean, we've gone 

t o a l o t of t r o u b l e t o t r y t o work w i t h them on these 

areas. 

Q. Okay, you answered a couple of my questions I was 

leading up t o . 

I s t here ever, on any of these o n - s i t e v i s i t s , a 

r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of the BLM t h a t ' s s p e c i f i c t o the o i l and 

gas resources? 

A. Well, the cave/karst person claims t o be a 

g e o l o g i s t . And we've never asked him i f he has any 

t e c h n i c a l t r a i n i n g , but he believes t h a t he knows as much 

about i t as our g e o l o g i s t . And i n f a c t , h i s l o c a t i o n was 

s uccessful. I don't know, maybe he does. 

Q. But as f a r as the departments, the BLM o f f i c e , 

the Carlsbad o f f i c e i n general has an o i l and gas designee 

of some k i n d ; i s t h a t correct? 

A. Well — 

Q. Or a t l e a s t they used t o . 

A. See, Carlsbad doesn't a c t u a l l y have a downhole 

person a t t h i s p o i n t . A l l the geologic and engineering 

work i s a c t u a l l y being handled out of the Roswell o f f i c e . 
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And so we a c t u a l l y submit our a p p l i c a t i o n s t o d r i l l t o 

Roswell. Roswell forwards them t o Carlsbad, Carlsbad does 

a l l the surface work, archaeology, b i o l o g y , w i l d l i f e , 

s e n s i t i v e species, cave/karst, a l l t h a t i s done i n 

Carlsbad. 

And then t h a t i s returned back t o Roswell, and 

then Roswell approves the a c t u a l downhole, you know, depths 

of casing s t r i n g s , cement program, where cement needs t o be 

brought t o . So the engineering i s a c t u a l l y s t i l l handled 

out of Roswell. 

Q. But there's never any Roswell — 

A. No. 

Q. That I d i d n ' t know. I t used t o be handled out of 

Carlsbad. 

A. Right. I n the r e o r g a n i z a t i o n they had looked a t 

moving a l l of the fun c t i o n s t o Roswell a t one p o i n t i n 

doing away w i t h the Carlsbad o f f i c e . 

And then i n the r e o r g a n i z a t i o n p lan they d i d 

a c t u a l l y consolidate the engineers and g e o l o g i s t s . A l l of 

our u n i t agreements and everything i s handled out of 

Roswell f o r southeast New Mexico. A l e x i s Swoboda and 

Armando Lopez are the engineering people. 

When we've had problems or questions about the 

way t h a t they want casing programs done i n Eddy County, 

n o r t h Eddy County i n p a r t i c u l a r , we've met w i t h Tim Gum 
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from OCD A r t e s i a , t h a t a c t u a l l y met w i t h the BLM i n 

Roswell. 

Q. Okay, back t o the cave and k a r s t concerns. 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. When the surface area i s being d r i l l e d or the 

surface s t r i n g i s being d r i l l e d and some s o r t of cave/karst 

environment i s h i t or encountered, i s the Carlsbad o f f i c e 

or t h i s cave/karst person n o t i f i e d , or do they know about 

i t ? 

A. Right, we're re q u i r e d , i f we have any l o s t 

c i r c u l a t i o n , t o immediately n o t i f y the Carlsbad o f f i c e . 

What we had set up on the Number 1 w e l l was t h a t 

i f we encountered a k a r s t when we d r i l l e d the surface 

s t r i n g , we would a c t u a l l y run our surface casing w i t h 

cement baskets, we would cement up t o the bottom of the 

cement basket t o a c t u a l l y b r i n g the cement up t o the v o i d , 

and then we would a c t u a l l y come i n and cement from the 

basket on t o the surface. 

Now, t h a t would leave a gap of no cement a c t u a l l y 

a t the v o i d . And our agreement was t h a t i f we d i d t h a t , 

then on the production s t r i n g we would have t o c i r c u l a t e 

cement between the production s t r i n g and the surface s t r i n g 

so t h a t t h e r e would be cement as w e l l as pipe p r o t e c t i n g 

t h a t v o i d from possible f l u i d m igrations i n f u t u r e years. 

That d i d n ' t happen, and so as a r e s u l t we were 
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allowed t o — we c i r c u l a t e d cement on the surface s t r i n g , 

and as a r e s u l t we were only r e q u i r e d t o b r i n g up the 

cement above any productive horizons, I b e l i e v e 500 f o o t 

above, on the production s t r i n g . 

Q. I f t h a t ' s encountered and you use the cement 

basket and c i r c u l a t e back up t o the surface, are you having 

t o one-inch i t ? 

A. I don't remember how t h a t was described i n our 

A p p l i c a t i o n . Since we d i d n ' t do i t , I don't remember. 

I t ' s been over a year now since we d i d t h a t w e l l , and I 

don't remember what they were r e q u i r i n g . I suspect i t 

probably was a one-inch type of program. 

I n d r i l l i n g the other two w e l l s t h a t d i d not have 

— The w e l l i n the northwest of 15 d i d have surface casing 

already on the r e - e n t r y , but the w e l l i n the northeast and 

then the w e l l i n the southwest of 14, we d i d not encounter 

any k a r s t f e a t u r e s . 

The other t h i n g t h a t — you know, and p a r t of the 

cave/karst person's concern i s the f a c t t h a t — you know, I 

referenced the f a c t t h a t there's a considerable slope t o 

the west th e r e across the highway, and i n f a c t there's a 

v a l l e y and the o l d Washington Ranch springs and a l l are 

down i n t h i s v a l l e y . There are some farms underneath t h i s 

slope. I n f a c t , i n Section 16 i s farmland i n t h e r e . 

And you know, the cave/karst person, one of h i s 
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concerns i n 2 3 was the f a c t t h a t he f e l t h i s k a r s t s were 

a c t u a l l y conduits t o the water a q u i f e r . 

We a c t u a l l y got an a e r i a l photo of t h i s area, 

went t o the State Engineer's o f f i c e , worked w i t h them t o 

determine t h a t — h y d r o l o g i c a l l y where we were i n Section 

23, t h a t yes, i f we were — you know, i f any f l u i d s d i d go 

i n t o one of these k a r s t s , t h a t the drainage, the hydrology 

was t o the east, and t h a t a c t u a l l y there i s no w e l l s i n 15 

or 24, no surface water i n those areas, and t h a t a c t u a l l y 

our drainage i n the shallow water a q u i f e r s was t o the east, 

i t was not t o the west, as he i n i t i a l l y i n d i c a t e d t h a t we'd 

be damaging, or pos s i b l y damaging, the s t u f f down below t o 

the west. 

We spent a long time. I mean, t h i s w e l l — We 

need t o make some w e l l s and make a l o t of gas t o pay f o r 

a l l of our time and e f f o r t . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay. I s the r e any other 

questions of t h i s witness? 

MR. OWEN: No, I have no f u r t h e r questions. 

EXAMINER STOGNER: You may be excused. 

I ' l l t e l l you what, Mr. M i l l e r ' s request has not 

gone unnoticed, and I would l i k e f o r you, Mr. Owen, t o work 

w i t h me on perhaps some a d d i t i o n a l paragraphs i n t h i s order 

t h a t d i r e c t the BLM, since — or what Mr. M i l l e r had 

requested, and perhaps t o f o l l o w up a l e t t e r w i t h these 
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concerns. 

I've had concerns out there q u i t e o f t e n — and 

t h i s i s not only i n the Carlsbad area but also i n the 

Farmington area — t h a t there's never an o i l and gas person 

on these o n - s i t e surveys, and i t seems t o have l o s t s i g h t 

t h a t t h a t ' s even a resource worth being concerned about, 

whenever these o n - s i t e surveys. Not only i s i t not g e t t i n g 

equal b i l l i n g , I don't even t h i n k i t ' s g e t t i n g adequate 

b i l l i n g . 

But i f you'd work w i t h me on t h i s , I ' d appreciate 

i t . 

MR. OWEN: Mr. Stogner, as a matter of 

c l a r i f i c a t i o n on the record, i t appears t h a t you w i l l be an 

i s s u i n g an order i n t h i s case, whatever the r e s u l t i s , 

which c l a r i f i e s the D i v i s i o n ' s concerns regarding w e l l s i n 

t h i s area and the need f o r the BLM t o take i n t o 

c o n s i d e r a t i o n the D i v i s i o n ' s r u l e s and i t s view of the 

necessity of f o l l o w i n g i t s w e l l - l o c a t i o n r u l e s i n t h i s area 

g e n e r a l l y ; i s t h a t correct? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: That's k i n d of what I see, 

addressing i n the course of the order t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

A p p l i c a t i o n , the concerns t h a t l e d us t o t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n . 

That can be expanded out t o the general — or t o r u l e 

changes, t o make i t more accessible. Even f o r them, the 

r u l e change was also done f o r them, t h e i r concerns, the 
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surface concerns. And h o p e f u l l y we would see fewer of 

these. 

But also, Mr. M i l l e r has also the concerns i n 26. 

But I t h i n k somewhat — wording can be i n t h e r e t o address 

a general issue i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area, along w i t h our 

r u l e s and r e g u l a t i o n s and concerns, i n l i g h t of what we 

have got t o have i n the order f o r t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

A p p l i c a t i o n . 

So i f y o u ' l l help me w i t h the d r a f t order, 

provide me one, and l e t ' s work w i t h i t . 

MR. OWEN: Mr. Examiner, I appreciate your 

concern, and I t h i n k i t ' s p a r t i c u l a r l y a p p r o p r i a t e t o 

Marbob i n t h i s case, given i t s proposal t o d r i l l two w e l l s 

i n 26 and i t s a n t i c i p a t i o n of d i f f i c u l t i e s i n d e a l i n g w i t h 

the BLM and w i t h those p a r t i c u l a r p r o j e c t s . 

EXAMINER STOGNER: Okay. So l e t ' s do t h a t , and 

i f there's nothing f u r t h e r i n Case Number 12,370, l e t ' s 

take a 15-minute recess, and thank you. 

(Off the record a t 10:00 a.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 10:26 a.m.:) 

EXAMINER STOGNER: I want t o r e t u r n t o Marbob 

Case 12,370, and f o r the record t h a t case w i l l be taken 

under advisement. 

MR. OWEN: Mr. Examiner, f o r the record, does 

Marbob have v e r b a l approval t o proceed w i t h the w e l l a t 
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t h i s time? 

EXAMINER STOGNER: At t h i s p a r t i c u l a r time I have 

a l l i n t e n t i o n s of approving t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n , and what I ' d 

l i k e f o r you t o do i s help me w i t h some a d d i t i o n a l wording 

i n l i g h t of our new r u l e changes and our new p o l i c y as f a r 

as g e t t i n g tougher on these unorthodox l o c a t i o n s . 

But i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r matter, yes, I have every 

i n t e n t i o n of — 

MR. OWEN: I look forward t o working w i t h you on 

t h a t matter, Mr. Examiner. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

10:27 a.m.) 

rofd o f the pre .. • - ^ - t a o i the prc--,v /*!«-.. 

heard by rr 

-onssrvcrf/on Division 
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